# 2023 年 9-12 月雅思口语 Part2 考题参考资料 (第五套故事<共五套>)

感谢小伙伴使用雅思过过过淘宝店铺口语素材!

在您使用过程中,有以下几点注意事项,请您在复习中留意:

- 提供素材的目的是启发思路、短期高效积累可用的地道口语表达。在编写素材时,我 们的原则是接地气、符合大众生活情境。但是,任何素材无法完美适合所有人,因此 建议练习中结合自身实际情况做素材调整,达到更高效复习的状态。
- 请搭配咱们发的《练习方法说明书》来使用素材,不建议逐字逐句背诵。针对练习方 法有疑问,请随时联系售后 Penny 根据个人情况来解答;
- 3. 生活中没有相关经历时,可以参考素材给你的启发来"编故事"。记住咱们家的雅思考官常说的——考试中"You can lie! The examiner does not know you and you do not know the examiner, so if you want to make your stories better.... you can!"
- 2023 年 9-12 月 Part2 共 50 个考题。第五套故事没有串题,每个题的故事简介可参考 第二页表格中的介绍(新题故事简介及中文翻译在一周内更新)。
- 5. <u>Part2</u> 题卡四小问不是必须回答的。如果准备 Part2 时,有自己想说的内容,<u>不必在意</u> 是否和四小问内容完全一致,只要和主 Topic 相关即可;
- 口语素材编写经过三轮审核校对,有很多地道的口语表达或许以前没有见过,但不是 错误。如果有疑问,可以随时联系售后 Penny 解答;
- 本店口语素材全部为雅思过过过淘宝店铺原创,已作国家知识产权登记保护,禁止盗版转卖,如有侵权将走法律程序。一旦发现盗版者,会即刻停止对其更新一切资料 (包括补充更新全部停更)。同时欢迎所有小伙伴督查举报,举报有奖。

———雅思过过过淘宝店铺

目录		
<mark>事件类</mark>	<del>\$</del>	. 4
	等待美好发生( <b>9-12</b> 月新题) <b>难思</b>	. 4
2.	<b>过过过</b> 让你开心的照片(9-12 月新题)	. 5
3.	喜欢的聚会(9-12 月新题)	. 6
4.	给他人的好建议(9-12 月新题)	.7
5.	让你觉得很累的活动(9-12月新题)	. 8
6.	改变你人生的一段时期(9-12月新题)	. 9
7.	工作/学习中克服困难而骄傲(9-12月新题)	10
8.	电脑出现故障(9-12 月新题)	11
9. 3	糟糕的服务(9-12 月新题)	12
10.	和小孩共度时光	13
11.	童年趣事	14
	想尝试的冒险	
	演讲经历	
	汽车旅行	
15.	传统庆祝活动	18
16.	攒钱买昂贵的礼物	19
17.	获得错误信息	20
18.	迷路的经历	21
19.	做过的重要决定	22
<mark>事物类</mark>	<u></u>	23
20.	有用的广告(9-12 月新题)	23
21.	一副画(9-12月新题)	24
22.	学校/工作中的重要规则(9-12月新题)	25
23.	和他人做过的刺激的活动(9-12月新题)	26
24.	感兴趣的科学领域( <b>9-12</b> 月新题)	27
25.	感兴趣的历史时期( <b>9-12</b> 月新题)	28
26.	感兴趣的工作	29
27.	喜欢穿的衣服	30
28.	水上运动	31
29.	童年游戏	32
30.	运动节目	33
31.	有用的发明	34
32.	理想的房子	35
33.	多次阅读的书	36

# 雅思过过过淘宝店铺原创----版权所有 盗版必究

34	<b>针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答</b> 让你失望的电影	37
	- 有趣/吸引你的地方(9-12 月新题)	M.
	美丽的城市(9-12月新题)	
37.	公园/花园(9-12 月新题)	
38.	新开的店	
39.	想去的遥远的地方	42
40.	人很多的地方	
<mark>人物类</mark>	<del>{</del>	
	汉语很好的外国人(9-12 月新题)	
	喜欢烹饪的人( <b>9-12</b> 月新题)	
	想见的有趣的人(9-12 月新题)	
44.	成功的商人(9-12 月新题)	
	想法有趣的人(9-12 月新题)	
	成功的同学(9-12月新题)	
47.	敬佩的运动员(9-12 月新题)	
48.		
	受欢迎的人	
50.	居住在你区域的乐于助人的人	53



Describe an occasion when you waited a long time for a nice thing You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) When it happened What the nice thing was Why you waited for a long time And explain how you felt about the experience



1. 等待美好发生(9-12 月新题)

I'm going to talk about the time I had to wait to hear about admission to my dream university for a postgraduate program. As soon as I started senior year of undergrad, I started researching which universities I wanted to apply to for a master's degree. I was really excited to study abroad, so I wanted to find the right choice by the time I graduated. I did a ton of research, and eventually found a Canadian university that had the perfect postgraduate program for me.

The application process wasn't that hard, but I was really stressed about it anyways. I stayed up all night making sure that my application form was perfect. After I submitted, I thought about the results every day. I kept wondering if I would get in. It was a great program, which also made it very competitive. I worried that I would get rejected. My friends encouraged me to stay focused on the present and enjoy my last year in college. I'm glad I had them to support me, or else I would've gone out of my mind thinking about this university.

It took a few months to hear back about the decision. That was one of the most stressful times in my life. But thankfully, I was accepted to this university. I was so happy when I finally got the news. My friends and I all celebrated together. I also called up my parents to share the big news with them. They were so excited. It was amazing.

注: 所有 9-12 月新题故事简介及翻译将在一周内更新

Describe a photo that makes you feel happy You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) When and where you took the photo What the photo is like How often you watch the photo And explain why it makes you feel happy



# 2. 让你开心的照片(9-12月新题)

When it comes to a photo that makes me happy, I'm going to talk about a picture that my dad took of my soccer team. If memory serves correctly, this photo was taken in my last year of high school. I remember that I was really passionate about soccer all throughout school. When I started high school, my top goal was to make it onto the school's soccer team. I was over the moon when I tried out and got picked to be on the team.

Playing competitive soccer is no joke. It takes such a toll on you because you have to keep physically fit and you have to dedicate yourself to countless practices. It's pretty grueling. But in the end, it's totally worth it because you get to do what you love and be part of a team. You get to bond with your teammates and help each other succeed. The photo I'm talking about was taken when we won our last tournament before graduation. We worked so hard to come out on top. You can see an expression of pure joy on each of our faces. We're all standing together, grinning ear-to-ear. It's such a fond memory.

I had this photo framed. Now it sits on my desk so I can see it whenever I'm working. It makes me so happy to look at it and remember the great times I had on that soccer team. I'll never forget how amazing it was to take home the championship.

Describe a party that you enjoyed You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) When and where the party was held Who attended the party What you did in the party And explain why you enjoyed this party



# 3. 喜欢的聚会(9-12 月新题)

I'm going to talk about a party that my best friend hosted when we graduated from university. This was a few years back, but I can still remember it really well. My best friend and I have been close ever since we met in our first year of university.

Honestly, we've gone through so much together. Getting my degree had its ups and downs, and I probably would've lost focus or gotten discouraged if it hadn't been for my friend. We encouraged each other to keep going and reminded ourselves to keep our eyes on the prize. When we finally graduated, it was so rewarding. So my friend decided to throw a huge party to celebrate.

He lives in an apartment building with a nice rooftop, so he rented out the common area there and invited all our friends over. Not only did he have lots of food and drinks, but he also got a big cake for us to share. I thought it was such a nice touch. It really added to celebratory mood.

If my memory serves me right, the party lasted from around noon until nearly 9 in the evening. I had a total blast at the party. I got to catch up with some friends I hadn't talked to in a while. It was really great to reminisce about our time at school together. Someone brought a karaoke machine, so I also sang my heart out. It was so fun to just kick back and relax after four years of getting my degree.

# Describe a piece of good advice that you gave to someone

You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答)

Who you gave the advice to What the advice was Why you gave the advice And explain how he / she followed your advice



# 4. 给他人的好建议(9-12 月新题)

I recently gave a piece of advice to my younger cousin, Emily, who was feeling overwhelmed with her workload during her first year of college. She was struggling to balance her academic responsibilities with extracurricular activities and a part-time job. The advice I gave her was to prioritize her tasks and practice time management effectively. That advice seems simple enough, but some people find it really difficult to set clear schedules, and even more difficult to stick to them.

I offered this advice because I had faced a similar situation during my own freshman year, and I knew how crucial it was to find a balance. I recommended that Emily create a daily schedule, allocating specific blocks of time for studying, work, and free time, of course. I also suggested she make use of productivity apps and tools to stay organized and set achievable goals for herself. Personally, I never much liked these apps, but my sister swears by them so I figured it was worth a shot.

Emily followed my advice really well. She started using time management apps and set aside dedicated study hours, which allowed her to complete assignments well ahead of deadlines. By adjusting her schedule, she was able to make time for her part-time job and extracurricular activities without feeling overwhelmed. Her grades improved, and she felt less stressed overall. She also carved out time for making friends, which is so important in your first year of college.

# Describe an activity that made you feel tired

You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) When it happened Where it took place What the activity was And explain why it made you feel tired



5. 让你觉得很累的活动(9-12 月新题)

An activity that made me feel tired was going for a hike with my friend. If memory serves correctly, this happened a few months ago. My friend David is really outdoorsy. He loves going for hikes. Personally, I'm much more of an indoors person. I like hanging out at a friend's house or just watching a movie at the theatre. But a while back, David was really pestering me to try hiking with him. So I finally gave in.

He took us to a trail a couple hours outside of the city. At first, it was mostly uphill. I felt like my lungs were going to burst! It doesn't help that I'm not the most physically active person in the world. But David was super patient with me. He gave me tips on how to manage my breathing and encouraged me to take breaks whenever I needed.

With his encouragement, I made it to the top of a very tall hill. It gave us an amazing view of the landscape below us. I couldn't believe how far I had hiked! I was pretty proud of myself. But I was also dead tired when I got home. My legs were killing me and all I wanted to do was lie down. After all, hiking takes up a lot of energy and really pushes you to your limits. But it was totally worth it to see that amazing view and spend some quality time with my friend.

Describe a period of time that changed your life in good ways

You should say: When it was Who you were with What happened And explain why it changed your life



6. 改变你人生的一段时期(9-12月新题)

When it comes to a period of time that changed my life, I have to talk about the summer job I had in my first year of college. Back then, I was just starting out in university, and I really didn't have much ambition in life. I didn't know what kind of career I wanted to have. But things actually became clearer for me once I started working at a small local supermarket.

It sounds strange that a job at a small supermarket changed my life. But that summer was really instrumental for me. The work itself was pretty boring. I mean, I thought it'd be more exciting because the store had all my favorite snacks and stuff. But in reality, besides stocking shelves and doing some cleaning, it was mostly just a standard job as a cashier. However, it really changed my life because I learned important skills. I had to be organized and on time, I had to deal with customers in a respectful and helpful way, and I had to deal with any problems that came up. It was the first time in my life that I was making my own money, so I also had to learn how to be financially responsible.

I think that if I hadn't had that job, I wouldn't have developed a curiosity about what other skills I could learn. I wouldn't have been as driven to get a job I was actually passionate about. So that was a very important time in my life.

# Describe a difficult task that you completed at work/study that you felt proud of

You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答)

What the task was How you completed it

Why this task was very difficult

And explain why you were proud of the completion of the task.



7. 工作/学习中克服困难而骄傲(9-12 月新题)

One difficult challenge that I faced was completing my thesis in my last year of university. Every university student needs to hand in a thesis in the last semester, which plays an important role in getting a degree. Not to mention, it's really hard and takes a lot of hours to write.

But in my senior year, I had a lot going on in my life as well. I was offered an internship by a very reputable company which is a giant in the business. So I was really looking forward to starting my career there as a full-time employee after I graduated. To make a good impression on the supervisors, I had to dedicate a lot of time to the internship. Honestly, at the time, besides taking courses, I hardly had time for schoolwork, which is where the difficulty came in.

It was a tough period I've gone through in life. On those days, I needed to try my best to balance work and study, which meant I often needed to work on my thesis until late in the night. It was literally the most difficult article I've ever written. But eventually, I managed to complete it and got ready for the thesis defense. I was over the moon when I heard from the professor that my thesis passed. It was an accomplishment and a win for me. I lost my confidence a few times when I was worn-out, both physically and mentally. But I'm glad I stuck to it and didn't give up.

# Describe a time when you had a problem with using the computer

You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答)

When it happened Where it happened Why the computer couldn't work And explain how you solved the problem at last



8. 电脑出现故障(9-12月新题)

I'm going to talk about the time my laptop kept crashing. I'm pretty sure this happened just a few months ago. My laptop is a few years old now. It's definitely not top of the line anymore. But it's been working pretty well for me. That is, until I had a final paper due and it decided not to work properly anymore.

It was totally out of the blue. I was working on my paper when my laptop shut down by itself. I didn't even get the chance to save my work. I was so frustrated. I rebooted it, but a few minutes later it crashed again. At that point, I was beside myself. I had to finish this paper on time and my laptop had given up on me. I had no idea what the problem was.

Honestly, I'm not the most tech-savvy guy. But luckily, I have a friend who studies computer science. He basically lives and breathes technology. I asked him to take a look at my laptop. He found out that I had accidentally downloaded some kind of virus. I was really freaked out since I didn't even know how that had happened. But after he played around for a couple hours, he managed to fix the problem for me. I was so relieved. Since then, I've installed software on my laptop that helps protect it from viruses. I never want to deal with that kind of problem again. It was way too stressful.

# Describe a bad service you received in a restaurant / shop You should say: (注:四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) When and where it happened What happened How it was solved And explain how you felt about the experience



# 9. 糟糕的服务(9-12 月新题)

Well, I'm not a picky person, I swear, but once I went to a restaurant and my experience was beyond disastrous. A couple weeks ago, my sister and I decided to try a new chic small restaurant near our school. The problem wasn't the location, it was the service and it was the food. All of it was terrible, and worst of all, overpriced.

When we walked in, two employees were arguing in the back kitchen. Nobody was at the counter. We had to awkwardly wait at the counter for like ten minutes before anyone even took notice of us. There were two other customers sitting at separate tables, and even they looked freaked out by the fight happening in the back.

Anyway, when one of the employees finally did come to take our order, we ordered two drinks and decided to split a large bowl of noodles, that looked good in the photos. Just these three items cost us a little over fifty yuan, which is beyond ridiculous.

Our food and drinks took thirty minutes before they finally arrived. The noodles were sticky, tasted stale, but the worst part was that there was a random piece of hair in it. My sister and I filed a complaint about the service and food and we got a fifty percent discount for our next order in compensation. That, I have to say, makes me furious. I couldn't even get a refund!

# Describe an occasion when you spent time with a young child

You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) Who this child was When you spent time with this child What you did together And how you felt about it



10. 和小孩共度时光

I'm going to talk about the time I helped my ten-year-old nephew work on his basketball skills. If memory serves correctly, this happened a few months ago. My nephew joined a basketball club but was struggling with coordination. He kept dropping the ball when the other players passed it to him. So I told him I'd help him out.

I decided to make a whole day out of it. On a Saturday when I was free, I picked him up and we went to a park nearby. We found a nice open space and practiced tossing the ball back and forth. I gave him a few tips, like making sure he knew where the ball was going to be so he could be in the right spot. We practiced for a couple hours, then I took him out for ice cream.

We enjoyed our ice cream together and talked about how life was going. He even opened up and told me about some problems he was having in his personal life. He said that he and a friend had gotten into a fight and neither of them wanted to apologize. So I gave him advice. I told him that he could be the bigger person and reach out to fix it. He said that he knew I was right and that he would try that.

Honestly, before that day, we hadn't really had many deep conversations. So that day was truly enjoyable for both of us. It was great that we got to strengthen our bond.

# 译文:

我要讲一下我帮助我十岁的侄子提高篮球技能的经历。如果我没记错的话,这是几个月前发生的事情。我的侄子加入了一个篮球俱乐部,但他的协调性不好。每当其他队员传球给他时,他总是接不到。于是我告诉他我会去帮帮他。

我决定花一整天时间在这件事上。有个星期六我刚好有空,我就去接他,我们一起去了附近的 一个公园。我俩找到了一个很好的很开放的空间,然后开始练习互相传球。我教给他很多小窍门,比 如让他提前看好球的落点,这样<mark>他就能站在正确的位置上</mark>。我们练习了几个小时,然后我带他去吃了 冰淇淋。

我俩一起美美的吃着冰淇淋,顺便聊了一下彼此的生活。他甚至<mark>向我敞开心扉</mark>,告诉我他在个 人生活中遇到的一些问题。他说他和一个朋友<mark>吵了架</mark>,双方都不愿意道歉。于是我给了他一些建议。 我告诉他<mark>可以表现好一些,主动去解决问题</mark>。他表示知道我说得对,也会尝试我的建议。

说实话,之前我们并没有进行过太多这样<mark>深入的交流</mark>。所以这一天对我们俩来说真的过的很愉快。<mark>俩人关系都更近了一步</mark>,真的非常好。

# 雅思

# Describe an enjoyable experience in your childhood

You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) When/ Where you had this experience Who you were with What you did And explain how you felt about it



# 11. 童年趣事

I remember the time I got a role in my school's musical. I think I was around 13-years-old. Originally, the role I played was supposed to go to another girl, but she dropped out of the production two weeks before opening night due to a foot injury. I felt bad that she got injured, but I was secretly grateful because it meant that I got to take over her role.

The show was a Broadway musical called *Cats*, which was a really fun performance to put on! The plot is based on an old book of poems by T.S Eliot, and it takes place in a junkyard. I played the role of a shy white kitten named Victoria. I really lucked out with this role because I got to do a ballet solo.

When I was spinning around the stage during the solo on opening night, I felt like I had found my calling in life. Even though I really had to crunch to get my act together at the last minute, I managed to pull off a great performance! I loved having the spotlight shining on me while the whole audience watched my every move.

Afterwards, when my teachers and classmates were praising my performance, I felt like I was on top of the world. It was the first time that I got a principal role in a play so it always sticks out in my mind as one of my biggest childhood accomplishments.

# 译文:

我还记得我<mark>参演学校音乐剧</mark>的那次经历。那时我差不多 13 岁。原本我扮演的角色应该是另一个 女孩的,但她因为脚受伤,在开演前两周<mark>退出了演出</mark>。虽然我为她受伤感到遗憾,但我还是<mark>暗自庆幸</mark>, 因为这意味着我终于有机会接替她来出演了。

那次演出是一部名为《猫》的百老汇音乐剧,非常有趣! 剧情是根据 T.S.艾略特的一本老诗集 改编的,整个故事发生在一个垃圾场。我扮演的是一只害羞的小白猫维多利亚。能得到这个角色让我 觉得运气非常好,因为我还得到了一段独舞的机会。

当我在开演的那个晚上在舞台上旋转时,<mark>我感觉到我似乎找到了自己人生的使命</mark>。尽管我不得 不在最后一刻都努力准备,但我还是成功地完成了一次精彩的表演!我真的很喜欢<mark>聚光灯照在我身上</mark>, 全场观众都去注视我的每一个动作。

表演完后,我的老师和同学们都夸我演的好,我<mark>开心的感觉自己就好像站在了世界之巅</mark>。这是 我第一次在剧中扮演主角,真的是我童年最大的成就之一,所以<mark>让我印象非常深刻</mark>。

# 雅思

### Describe an adventure you would like to take in the future

You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答)

What the adventure is Where you would go Who you would be with And explain why you would like to take the adventure



# 12. 想尝试的冒险

I've always dreamed of traveling in a time-machine. I know it's not possible for now, but with the way technology is developing, who knows in the future, right? I've thought about this a lot, probably because I've read so many books about time travel, and I know exactly where I'd go. I would go back to the year 1500 to see how the Incas from Peru lived.

Actually, I recently watched a documentary about Peru and learned that there are lots of impressive fortresses there made of huge stones. These stones were cut and placed together with incredible precision. The stones are enormous and weigh up to 360 tons each, making it a mystery how they got transported there and placed together so perfectly. It really boggles my mind to think about it! Actually, many people think that aliens played a role in the building of these fortresses since their construction is such an incredible feat especially for such a long time ago before machinery. Seeing the ruins leftover from so long ago and imagining the way people lived back then really sparked my curiosity.

Anyways, since watching that documentary and witnessing the fascinating ancient sites, I've been wanting to get to the bottom of the mystery. Of course, if I ever do get the chance to go back in time to ancient Peru, I'll bring an expert on the culture so I can avoid potential disasters, like ending up as a human sacrifice. 译文:

我一直梦想着<mark>坐上一辆时光机去旅行</mark>。我知道现在不可能,但随着科技的发展,未来谁知道呢? 我经常会想这个问题。可能是因为我读了很多关于时光旅行的书,所以我知道我会去哪里。我想回到 1500年前,看看<mark>秘鲁的印加人是怎么生活的</mark>。

实际上,最近我看了一部关于秘鲁的纪录片,了解到那里<mark>有许多令人印象深刻的堡垒,都是由巨大的石头建成的</mark>。这些石头被<mark>精确地</mark>切割和拼接在一起。这些石头特别大,每块重达 360 吨,让人 难以理解它们是怎么被运输到那里并完美地拼接在一起的。仔细想这一点,<mark>真的让人难以置信</mark>!实际 上,许多人认为外星人可能参与了这些堡垒的建造,因为这样的建筑对于那个时代来说是<mark>令人难以置</mark> 信的壮举,尤其是在没有机械设备的时代。看到这么久以前遗留下来的废墟,想象当时人们的生活方 式,真的激起了我的好奇心。

所以自从看了那个纪录片,并目睹了那些迷人的古代遗址后,我一直<mark>想要弄清楚这个谜团的答</mark> 案。当然,如果我真的有机会回到古代的秘鲁,我会带上一位对该文化非常了解的专家,这样我就能 避免潜在的灾难,比如成为活人祭品。

# 雅思

Describe a time that you gave a talk to a group of people You should say: (注:四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) Who you talked to What you talked about Why you talked to them And explain how you felt about it



### 13. 演讲经历

Well, the last time I gave a talk to a group of people was when I was running for treasurer of a student club. In my second year of undergrad, I decided to get involved in some extra-curriculars. One club I joined was the student club for my specific department. This club was in charge of making sure that students in the program were supported and had lots of chances to socialize as well. I've always been good with numbers and organization, so I decided to volunteer as a treasurer. But there were some other people interested in the position as well, so we all had to give speeches to the student body to explain why we were the best candidate.

I was really nervous to give my speech but my passion for the position helped me overcome it. At the event, I told a group of students how I was an organized, driven, and passionate person who would do their best. I also gave them examples of how I've managed budgets before. I even answered a few questions after my speech was over. Overall, it went really well. Luckily, after all the votes came in, I was the number one choice. I was so ecstatic that my speech convinced the students to vote for me!

As for how I felt about it, I wasn't super eager to give a speech. It was a nerve-wracking affair. But I ended up delivering my message well, which boosted my confidence. It's a cherished memory that I'll always treasure.

#### 译文:

我最近一次给一群人演讲是在我参加学生俱乐部的财务主管竞选的时候。我上大二时候,决定参与一 些课外活动。当时我加入了我们专业对应的学生俱乐部。这个俱乐部负责确保学生们能得到各种需要 的帮助,也为大家提供很多社交的机会。我一直都对数字和组织工作很在行,所以我自愿担任财务主 管。但是还有其他人对这个职位也感兴趣,所以我们都需要做演讲,解释为什么我们是最佳人选。 我在演讲时非常紧张,但是对这个职位的热情帮助我克服了紧张的情绪。演讲当天,我告诉在场的同 学们,我是一个有组织、有动力、充满激情的人,也会尽己所能服务大家。我还举了一些我以前做预

<mark>算的例子</mark>。演讲结束后,我甚至还回答了几个大家的提问。总体来说,效果非常好。

很幸运的就是,<mark>在投票结果出来后</mark>,我排名第一。我为自己的演讲能够成功说服大家投票给我,感到 非常<mark>兴奋</mark>!

至于我的感受,其实我并不是特别渴望去演讲,<mark>这是一件非常让人紧张的事情</mark>。但是最终,<mark>我成功地</mark> <mark>传达了我的想法</mark>,也<mark>让我更自信了</mark>。所以这是一段很珍贵的回忆,我会永远记得。

#### 和思 히려려

Describe a car journey you made that you remember well. You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) When it was Who was with you How long the journey took And explain why you remember this car journey so well.



# 14. 汽车旅行

I've got a pretty unique car journey story to share with you. It was actually my first time ever behind the wheel, when I took the road test to get my driver's license.

The whole journey was super short, less than 10 minutes, but I was a nervous wreck! I was 20 years old at the time. My dad and younger brother came along for support and waited at the driving center while I took the test. Unfortunately, I didn't perform well, especially during the parallel parking part. I hit the curb hard and knew I had failed. The instructor's disapproving expression and notes on the clipboard still linger in my mind. I tried to keep my cool for the rest of the test, but I was really shaken up inside. When I returned to the driving center to meet my dad and brother, they could tell just by looking at me that I had messed up. I tried to hide my disappointment, but it was clear that I was on the verge of tears.

I felt really bummed out on the way home because the test had cost me a lot of money. My dad tried to cheer me up by sharing a story about his own exam failure, but I kept ruminating over my mistake and couldn't focus on anything else for the rest of the day. Anyways, after that, I practiced more, and I finally nailed it on my second road test and got my driver's license!

#### 译文:

我有一个非常特别的汽车旅行故事想要和你分享。事实上<mark>那是我第一次开车</mark>,去<mark>参加路考</mark>,考驾照的 经历。

整个旅程非常短,不到 10 分钟,但<mark>我紧张得要命</mark>!那时我 20 岁。我爸爸和弟弟陪我去考场给我加油, 他们在驾驶中心等待我开考。不幸的是,我表现得不好,尤其是<mark>平行停车</mark>那部分。我重重地撞上了马 路牙子,我知道我没考过。考官不满的表情和手上的记录本到现在在我脑海中都挥之不去。我试图保 持镇定完成剩下的考试,但心底真的很受打击。当我回到驾驶中心见到我爸和我弟时,他们一看我就 知道我搞砸了。我试图隐藏自己失望的情绪,但很明显我快要哭出来了。

回家路上,我非常沮丧,因为考试花了我很多钱。我爸试图通过分享自己考试失败的故事来鼓励我, 但我<mark>一直纠结于自己出现的错误</mark>,一整天都无法集中注意力。不过后来,我加强练习,<mark>第二次路考我</mark> 终于拿到了驾照!

# 雅思

# Describe a traditional celebration you enjoy in your country. You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) What it is; Who you celebrate with; What you do in this celebration; And explain why you enjoy this traditional celebration.



15. 传统庆祝活动

I'd like to talk about traditional Chinese wedding celebrations. I've been to a bunch of weddings of my relatives and friends since I was a kid, so I know all about the traditional Chinese wedding party scene.

In our country, the big highlight of the wedding day is when the groom and his crew go to the bride's house to pick her up and bring her to the wedding venue. But it's not an easy task! The bride's friends always come up with all sorts of crazy ways to keep the groom from getting inside. He has to pass all kinds of tests, like singing a song or finding the hidden wedding shoes, before he's allowed to enter the bride's room. It's always a blast and super fun!

Once the groom finally makes it inside and meets the bride, they both head out together to the wedding party with their bridesmaids and groomsmen. But before they leave, there's one cool tradition where the bride has to carefully step over a burning basin. It's like a symbol of good luck and prosperity for their new life together.

You know, I absolutely love these Chinese wedding celebrations. I've been a bridesmaid/groomsman several times, and each time it's been a joyous and heartwarming experience. It's such a special time when everyone comes together to share in the happiness. Honestly, I'm really looking forward to my own wedding celebration, which I'm sure will also be a memorable experience.

# 译文:

我想要说的是中国传统婚礼庆典。从小到大,我参加过<mark>很多亲戚和朋友的婚礼</mark>,所以对于传统 中式婚礼的庆祝活动非常熟悉。

在我们国家,通常<mark>结婚当天最重要的活动</mark>就是迎亲。迎亲是新郎要早早的带着他的一帮人</mark>去新 娘家,接新娘前往婚礼现场参加婚礼派对。不过这不是很容易的事,因为通常新娘的朋友们总是会<mark>想</mark> 出各种疯狂的方法来阻止新郎进门。新郎必须通过各种测试,比如唱歌、<mark>找被藏起来的婚鞋</mark>等,才可 以进去新娘的房间。这一步往往都<mark>特别好玩</mark>、特别热闹!

从新娘家成功出来后,新娘新郎就会和伴娘伴郎<mark>一起前往</mark>婚礼派对。不过离开前,通常还有一 个很有意思的传统,就是新娘要小心地<mark>跨过一个点燃的火盆</mark>,寓意希望自己的新生活会越过越旺。

我非常喜欢中式婚礼的这些庆典活动。其实我做了好几次伴娘/伴郎了,每一次参与其中都能感 受到那种<mark>喜庆和温馨的感觉</mark>。这是家人、朋友可以同时聚在一起共同分享欢乐的幸福时刻。老实说我 非常期待自己的婚礼庆典,一定也会是非常难忘的回忆。

# 雅思

Describe an expensive gift you would like to give to someone when you save a lot of money. You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) What gift you would like to buy; Who you would like to give it to; How long it would take to save the money; And explain why you would like to give this expensive gift to this person.



### 16. 攒钱买昂贵的礼物

I'd really like to get my older sister a Tiffany bracelet. She just graduated with her Ph.D., and the whole family is super proud of her. I've admired her my whole life and I really want to get her something special in order to show just how much I appreciate and respect her. Plus, I know better than anyone how much work she put into her studies. Her research was no joke, and I hardly ever saw her taking a break during those three years. Even during holidays, she was all about studying. So, she totally deserves the success she's achieved.

Unfortunately, I don't have a super high-paying job. So I can't just splurge on an expensive bracelet without saving up for months. I think it'll probably take me six or seven months to set aside enough money for it. I could just get her a cheaper bracelet from a different brand, but I know that she's really into Tiffany stuff. So, I'd like to get her something she'll cherish. Plus, I want it to be high-quality so it'll last a lifetime.

I know that by the time I can afford the bracelet, it'll be long after his graduation. But I think that she'll appreciate the thought anyways. Honestly, my big sister is such an important person to me. I would do anything for her. Giving her this bracelet is just one way that I can show her how important she is to me. 译文:

我非常想给我姐姐买一个 Tiffany 的手链。她刚刚获得了博士学位,全家人都为她感到骄傲。一直 以来我都很钦佩她,所以我真的想给她一个特别的礼物,以表达我对她的欣赏和尊重。而且,我比任 何人都更了解她在学业上付出的努力。她的研究工作非常辛苦,所以我很少见到她三年学习期间有过 任何消遣的时光。即使是假期我姐姐都从来没有中断过学习。因此,她完全配得上她所取得的成功。

可惜我目前的工作薪水并不高,所以我不能一下子就把钱都挥霍出来去买一个昂贵的手链,我还 是需要存几个月的钱才能买到。当然我也可以选择买一个其他牌子的便宜的手链,但我知道她非常喜 欢 Tiffany 的东西。所以,我想给她一个她会珍惜的礼物。而且我也希望它的质量是真的好,能够<mark>陪伴</mark> 她一生。

我知道,等我能够买得起这个手链的时候,可能我姐已经毕业很久了。但我相信她会<mark>感激我的心</mark> 意。说实话,我姐姐对我来说非常重要,我愿意为她做任何事情。给她这个手链只是我表达她对我的 重要性的其中一种方式。

# 雅思

**Describe an occasion when you got incorrect information** You should say: (注:四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答)

When you got it How you got it How you found it was incorrect And how you felt about it



# 17. 获得错误信息

I remember a time during the holidays when I got the wrong information from an airline. I was traveling across the country during the busiest travel time of the year, and my flight kept getting delayed. The delay was due to a big storm. I was pretty stressed since I had a connection to make and I suspected I would miss it due to the delay. Eventually, the time of my connection came and went, and I was still waiting to board my first flight, so I lined up to speak to a staff member of the airline about my options. She assured me that I would be given a hotel and meal voucher from the airline upon arrival at my first stop.

However, that was not the case at all! By the time I arrived, it was after midnight and the entire airport was closed. There were no airline staff working and no restaurants open. Actually, thousands of other passengers were stranded there. They had all been promised food and accommodation like me, but given nothing. It made me sad to see elderly people and pregnant women sleeping on the floor. I had to find a nearby hotel and pay for it myself. It wasn't cheap and I was furious that the airline staff had lied to everyone, just so they wouldn't have to deal with complaints. Honestly, by the time I got to my hotel, I was furing, so I wrote the airline a huge letter of complaint giving them a piece of my mind.

# 译文:

我记得有一次假期,我从航空公司得到了错误的信息。我当时正在一年中人们出行最繁忙的时间段在 全国各地旅行,但是我的航班一直被延误。那次延误是因为一场大风暴。我感到压力很大,因为<mark>我有</mark> 一个需要转机的航班,我怀疑由于延误很可能会错过那个航班。最终,<mark>我的转机时间都已经过去了</mark>, 而我还在<mark>等待第一班航班的登机时间</mark>...于是我排着队找航空公司的工作人员询问我该怎么办。她向我 保证说,在我到达了第一个目的地后,<mark>会获得航空公司提供的酒店和用餐券</mark>。

然而,事实却完全不是这样!当我到达那里的时候,已经过了午夜,整个机场都关闭了。没有航空公司的工作人员,也没有餐厅开门。实际上,数千名乘客被滞留在那里。他们都同样被承诺了会提供食物和住宿,但却一无所获。看到老年人和孕妇躺在地板上睡觉,我为他们感到难过。我自己不得不去找了附近的酒店并自己支付了费用。这花了我不少钱,我对航空公司这种为了避免处理投诉而对大家撒谎的行为,感到非常愤怒。老实说,当我终于到达酒店时,我非常生气,于是我给航空公司写了一封很长的投诉信,向他们表达了我的不满。

# 雅思

Describe an occasion when you got lost You should say : (注:四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) Where you were What happened How you felt And explain how you found your way



# 18. 迷路的经历

When my boyfriend and I first started dating five years ago, we went to a hiking trail in our town and got very lost. It was a beautiful winter day so we bundled up, put on hiking boots and got ready to explore. We kept walking for quite a while, assuming the trail would loop around but it didn't... it just kept going.

Eventually, we completely lost track of how far we had walked and where exactly this trail would end. We kept walking forward instead of turning around because we figured it had to end somewhere. My boyfriend even ran up ahead to see if the trail would come to an end anytime soon but it didn't. Little did we know, the trail was about 10 kilometers long and we were nowhere near the end.

We had been walking for two hours and we were at our wits' end so we decided that we should take a different route and see if we could get out. We found a hill that had a fence at the top of it that we could climb over. We clambered up the steep hill and managed to hoist ourselves over the fence.

Then we found the right direction on the west side of the trail and ended up walking another hour to get back to our car. Anyway, once we found the road we knew where we were and were able to find our way back to the car! It was a stressful situation but we got a good workout at least!

### 译文:

我和男朋友五年前刚开始约会时,我们去了镇上的一个徒步的步道,结果迷路了。那是一个美丽 的冬天,所以我们<mark>穿的很暖和</mark>,穿上登山靴准备探险。我们一直走了很长一段时间,我们以为这条路 会<mark>绕回来</mark>,但它没有,只是继续向前延伸。

最终,我们<mark>完全不知道记得我们走了多远,也不知道这条路到底会到哪里去</mark>。我们不停地向前走 而不是转身,因为我们认为它肯定会在某个地方结束。我的男朋友甚至<mark>跑到前面</mark>看这条小路是否会很 快结束,但它没有结束。我们一点也不知道,这条小路大约有 10 公里长,我们离终点还远着呢

我们已经走了两个小时了,俩人<mark>束手无策了</mark>,所以我们决定走另一条路,看看能不能出去。我们 发现了一座山顶有栅栏的小山,我们可以爬过去。我们<mark>向上爬过了陡峭的山坡</mark>,设法<mark>(把自己翻过去)</mark> 翻过了栅栏。

然后我们在小路的西侧找到了正确的方向,最后又走了一个小时回到了我们的车上。我们一找到 了路,我们就知道我们在哪里,并且能够找到回到车里的路!这是一个压力很大的情形,但我们至少 身体得到了很好的锻炼!

# 雅思

下划线表示与其他题目内容有重叠; 黄色高亮是高分地道表达, 在译文中也已相应高亮出来。 如有任何语法词汇方面的问题, 请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺售后微信中联系 Penny 老师解答。

21

# Describe an important decision you made

You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答)

What decision you had to make; How you made the decision;

Why this decision was difficult/important;

And explain whether you think it was a right decision.



# 19. 做过的重要决定

I'd like to talk about the time when I had to choose a university after my college entrance exams. I had two options that met the requirements, but it was challenging to determine the best fit. You know, this choice had a big impact on my future and career, so it was a pretty major decision.

Here's the thing: one school was close to home, but I didn't meet the score requirements for the program I wanted. The other school had an awesome program where I knew I could excel, but it was in a city miles away that I'd never been to. When I talked to some of my friends, the choice seemed obvious to them. They all said that I should go to the school that had the better program. My parents, on the other hand, wanted me to stay close to home for a stronger support system.

I was really torn between these choices. At the end of the day, I had to do what was right for me. So I decided to go to the school that was far from home. I told my parents that I would visit home as much as I could. It was definitely hard for me for the first few months, but I managed to make some friends which made it easier to deal with.

Looking back, I think I made the right choice. Despite the difficulty of being away from my family, the program was outstanding, and I have no regrets about my decision.

# 译文:

我想谈谈我<mark>在高考后选择大学</mark>的经历。我有两个符合要求的选项,但很难确定<mark>哪个更适合我</mark>。你知道, 这个选择对我的未来和职业发展有着重大影响,所以这是一个相当重要的决定。

事情是这样的,其中一个学校离我家很近,但我没达到想要上的那个专业的分数线。另一个学校有一 个很棒的专业,我知道我可以在那里表现的很出色,但那个学校在一个我从未去过的城市。当我和一 些朋友谈论起来的时候,这个答案对他们来说似乎很明显。他们都说我应该去那个专业更好的学校。 然而,我爸妈希望我留在家附近,这样我可以获得家人更多的支持和帮助。

我对此感到很纠结。最终,我必须为自己做出正确的选择。所以我决定去离家很远的那个学校。我告诉我的父母我会尽量多回家看看。刚开始的几个月对我来说确实很难,但我设法交到了一些朋友,这 让我更容易应对遇到的问题。

<mark>现在回想起来</mark>,我认为我做出了正确的选择。尽管离开家有一些困难,但我学的专业很好,所以<mark>我对</mark> 我的决定并不后悔。

# 雅思



Describe a good advertisement that you think is useful You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) Where you can see it What it shows Why you think it is useful And explain how you feel about it

20. 有用的广告(9-12 月新题)

Honestly, I really dislike most advertisements. But when it comes to a useful one, I can think of an ad I saw online. I was looking up a video on YouTube and this commercial played beforehand. I couldn't skip it, so I had to watch it. But it turned out to be pretty compelling.

The commercial shows the lives of two different puppies. The first puppy is sold by a breeder to a happy and loving family. It has a really nice life going for walks and being pampered. But the other puppy is abandoned by its family and ends up in a shelter. No one wants to adopt it, even though it's super cute. The ad shows these puppies side by side to compare and contrast how they're treated. In the end, the second puppy becomes an old, lonely dog that nobody wants. It was honestly super heartbreaking.

I think it's a useful ad because it encourages people to rescue dogs instead of buying them. It shows that so many dogs are neglected and deserve a good home, but they never get one because people think that buying a puppy is better. I don't have a pet right now, but if I ever got one, I would definitely consider rescuing one because of this ad. The puppy that never got adopted really broke my heart. Even though it was just a commercial, it made me more empathetic to these animals.



# Describe a painting You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) When you first saw this painting What the painting is about Who the painter is And explain how you feel about this painting

21. 一副画(9-12 月新题)

I'm going to talk about a painting of a lake that my uncle did. He's a really talented painter. Even though he never pursued art in a professional capacity, I honestly think he could've gone really far in the art world.

When I was a kid, my favorite thing in the house was this painting. It hung in our living room so that guests could admire it when they came over. I really loved the colors in it. My favorite color is blue. So naturally I really liked all the shades of blue that make up the lake. Plus, there are reflections of trees in the water, which make it a really nice scene. It's actually a painting of a real lake that my uncle visited in his youth. Obviously, it made a pretty strong impression on him.

My mom said that her brother, my uncle, gave it to her as a wedding gift. She always admired his knack for painting, so she was really happy to have an original artwork of his in the house. Plus, all our visitors always complimented it. That painting is still there, so whenever I visit my parents I make sure to take a look at it. The painting is so detailed and realistic. It still takes my breath away, even after all this time.

I'm so glad that my uncle is such a talented painter. I really love this painting and I hope one day he'll paint something for me.

# Describe a rule that is important in your school or at work

You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答)

What the rule is about

What happens when people break the rule Why you think it is an important rule

And explain how you felt about this rule.



22. 学校/工作中的重要规则(9-12月新题)

One rule that's important in my school is a zero-tolerance bullying policy. No one is allowed to bully another student, whether that's calling them a name, pushing or shoving them, or sending them hateful messages online. It's a shame that we even have to have this rule, but sometimes young people can be pretty mean to each other. Especially in this day and age, where we all have social media, it's easy for things to get out of hand.

If people are caught breaking the rule, they can get suspended or even expelled. The school takes this rule very seriously, as they should. Thankfully we haven't had many people break this rule. But I think that it's really important to have this rule in place. Sometimes people think that teasing others is a harmless activity. But sometimes something that may start out as harmless can become very damaging for the person being teased. Plus, you never know what someone is going through. They may seem fine on the outside, but they may really be struggling on the inside. Even a minor joke at their expense could really hurt their feelings. People need to be mindful of other people and avoid making them feel bad.

Bullying is a really serious issue. Nobody should feel targeted or unsafe when they're at school. So I'm glad that the school is so strict about this. There should be consequences when you go out of your way to disrespect someone.

# Describe an exciting activity you did with others.

You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) What you did Where and when you did this Who you shared the activity with



# 23. 和他人做过的刺激的活动(9-12月新题)

And explain why this activity was new or exciting for you.

An exciting activity I did pretty recently was going rock-climbing with a group of guys We went to an indoor gym a few weeks ago to give this activity a try. I'm not the most athletic guy, but I like trying new things. A while ago, my friend Ben mentioned that he had started rock-climbing at a nearby gym. He told me it was a great way to exercise as well as get a hit of adrenaline. It sounded interesting, but I was worried that I would stick out at the gym since I've never tried it before. To ease my worries, he told me that he'd invite some other guys who were beginners.

The day of our rock climb finally came around. I was a little on edge since I didn't know if I'd be any good at it. But I decided to try and overcome my anxiety. I met Ben's other friends and we hit it off right away. So I was already feeling more comfortable by the time we got our gear on and started climbing up the wall.

To my surprise, I was a natural! It came easily to me. The only time I faltered was when I got to the top and realized how high up I was. But it was totally worth it to get that sense of accomplishment. It was really cool to test my limits and discover new skills. I'm excited to go rock-climbing again sometime soon.

# Describe a science subject (Biology, Robotics, etc.) that you are interested in

You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答)

Which subject it is

When and where you came to know this subject

How you got information about this subject

And explain why you are interested in this subject

# 24. 感兴趣的科学领域(9-12 月新题)

I'm really interested in robotics. I first heard about it in high school. One of my teachers noticed I had an aptitude for technology, so she suggested that I think about studying robotics. She even gave me some books to read and websites to check out. I really appreciated her guidance because it sounded pretty interesting to me and I wanted to know more. Once I went down that rabbit hole, I was hooked. When I started college, I took an intro course to robotics and I knew that I wanted to learn even more about it after that.

Robotics is really fascinating. It actually involves a lot of other areas, such as computer science and algebra. You have to know the ins and outs of those subjects so that you can apply them in robotics. The field itself is very broad. There are tons of different applications for it. For example, you could spend your time developing industrial robots. Those are used in manufacturing to streamline work and make things more effective.

Another interesting thing about robotics is that it opens up lots of possibilities. Imagine how robots could help in the field of medicine, for example. Even now, there are studies devoted to creating robots to help with surgeries. Since robots are way more precise than humans, they can be used for very delicate surgeries and other health procedures.

Anyway, I want to learn more about robotics because I think it can help advance humanity. It can help us reach new heights and function more efficiently.

# Describe a period in history which you are interested in

You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答)

When it was What happened How you first learned about it And explain why you are interested in this period of history



# 25. 感兴趣的历史时期(9-12月新题)

When it comes to a historical period I'd like to know more about, the first one that comes to mind is the Renaissance. You know, so many people know a lot of facts about that time period since it's really important in European history. But my knowledge of this period is limited.

As far as I know, the Renaissance started in the 14<sup>th</sup> century. I think it lasted for a few hundred years. It's hard to say definitively because it happened differently around the world. But the main gist of it is that it was a period of significant developments, both in the sciences and the arts. Renaissance means "rebirth." It was really important as a cultural movement. There were lots of big discoveries and innovations during that time.

I'm interested in it because lately, I've really taken a liking to classical art. You know, I'm obsessed with classical painters like Leonardo da Vinci and Michelangelo. Basically everyone in the world knows about the Mona Lisa, which is probably the most famous painting in the world.

I would love to do a deep dive into the Renaissance. Nowadays, the paintings from that period of history are extremely expensive, so I'm curious about how much they sold for at the time and how people viewed them. This would be an interesting topic to study. I'm not sure when I'll have the time. Maybe I'll just have to read up on it on my own. I'd love to become an expert on this time period.

(Copyrights to 雅思过过过淘宝店铺)

# 译文:

说到我想了解更多的历史时期,我<mark>第一个想到的</mark>是<mark>文艺复兴时期</mark>。因为它在欧洲历史上非常重要, 所以许多人都了解关于这个时期的一些事实。但是<mark>我对这个时期的历史知识了了解的还是比较有限的</mark>。

据我所知,文艺复兴始于14世纪。我觉得它应该是持续了几百年。之所以这一点很难明确的说清 楚,是因为文艺复兴在世界各地发生的时间都不完全一样。不过文艺复兴的要点是,在这段历史时期, 人类的艺术和科学领域都有重大发展。文艺复兴的意思是"重生"。它作为一场文化运动,对人类发展 非常重要,那个时期有许多的重大发现和创新。

我对文艺复兴时期很感兴趣,因为最近我对古典艺术很着迷。我很迷恋莱昂纳多·达·芬奇和米开 朗基罗这些古典画家。基本上全世界的人都知道蒙娜丽莎,这可能是世界上最著名的绘画之一。

我特别想<mark>深入了解</mark>这个时期,现如今,文艺复兴时期出现的绘画卖的都非常贵,所以我很好奇当时<mark>它们卖多少钱</mark>,人们当时如何看待它们。这一定是一个很有趣的研究课题。我不确定我什么时候会 有时间去研究,也许我只能自己<mark>读读相关的知识</mark>。我很乐意了解更多一些,成为那个时期的专家。

Describe a job that you think is interesting. You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) What it is How you knew it What skills it requires And explain why you think it is interesting.

# 26. 感兴趣的工作

I think travel bloggers have the most interesting job. This job comes to mind because I have a friend who dabbles in travel blogging and she seems to be living the dream. After all, what's more exciting than traveling the world and getting paid for it?

This job appeals to me because it sounds glamorous and fun. People love taking photos on vacation to show off on social media and writing about their travels, so monetizing it makes sense, right?

My friend told me that the tricky part of the job is that being a travel blogger means you are self-employed, so all the facets of the business fall onto your lap. You'll have to find sponsors, learn to take beautiful photos, be tech-savvy, be good with PR, do your own marketing, and be business savvy. All this on top of being a captivating story-teller and writer. It also helps to be popular on social media.

On the other hand, I think the biggest perk of the job is being invited on press trips. This is when a tourism board invites bloggers to travel to a destination. During or after the trip, the bloggers write about their experience to share it with their followers. My friend has been invited on press trips to lots of exciting and exotic destinations like Turkey, Finland, and Belize. So, even if the hard parts of the job mean travel blogging isn't all it's cracked up to be, it sure beats sitting at a desk all day!

译文:

我认为旅行博主有着最有趣的工作。我之所以会想到这个工作,是因为我有一个朋友就是<mark>涉足旅行博</mark> <mark>客这个领域的</mark>,她似乎过着梦幻般的生活。毕竟,有什么比环游世界并赚到钱更令人兴奋的呢?

我之所以被这个工作吸引,是因为它听起来<mark>充满了魅力</mark>和乐趣。人们都喜欢在度假时拍照然后放在社 交媒体上炫耀,并写下他们的旅行经历,所以<mark>将其变现是合理的</mark>,对吧?

我朋友告诉我说,这个工作的难点在于作为旅行博主,你是自雇的,所以<mark>所有的业务都落到了你自己</mark> 的肩上。你需要自己找赞助商,学会拍摄漂亮的照片,<mark>精通科技</mark>,擅长公关</mark>,还要自己做营销,并具 备商业头脑。除了能够讲故事和擅长写作吸引他人以外,还有一点很重要,那就是要在社交媒体上受 欢迎。

不过我认为这个工作最大的好处是可以被邀请参加媒体旅行,也就是说可以有机会收到文旅局的邀请 前往某个目的地去旅行。旅行期间或之后,博主需要写下他们的体验与粉丝分享。我朋友就曾被邀请 去过很多令人兴奋和奇特的目的地,比如土耳其、芬兰和伯利兹。所以,即使这个工作有一些难度, 让旅行博主并不像表面上看上去那么美好,但它肯定比整天坐在办公桌前要好得多!

# 雅思过过过

# Describe a piece of clothing you wear most often You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) What it is How often you wear it What it is like And explain why you enjoy wearing it



A piece of clothing that I wear most often is a Levi's denim jacket. You know, Levi's is a really popular American brand. They're known for selling high-quality clothes that last you for a longtime. I'm a huge fan of denim, so I've got a bunch of jeans and denim jackets, but this Levi's jacket is my absolute favorite because it's really comfortable and it goes with everything.

If memory serves correctly, I bought this jacket a few years ago. I thought it might wear down, but it has stayed in good condition over the years. I probably wear it a few times a week, especially during the spring and fall seasons. I don't have to put much thought into my outfit once I've picked this denim jacket out. I can pair it with a T-shirt or a sweater of any color. It's a nice shade of blue that goes with all the shirts in my closet.

A nice feature of this jacket is that it has deep pockets. I don't tend to bring a bag with me when I go out. I just put my phone, wallet, and keys in my pockets and then I'm good to go. It would drive me crazy if I didn't have enough room in my pockets for my essentials. So I'm glad this jacket have everything I need.

Anyway, I like wearing this Levi's jacket because it fits me nicely and it's good for a casual look. I'll definitely keep it in my wardrobe forever.

# 译文:

我经常穿的一件衣服是一件李维斯的<mark>牛仔外套</mark>。你知道,李维斯是一个非常受欢迎的美国的品牌。他 们以销售高质量、耐穿的衣服而著名。我这人<mark>非常喜欢</mark>牛仔布料,所以我买了很多牛仔裤和牛仔外套, 但这件李维斯的上衣是我最喜欢的,因为它穿起来非常舒服,而且<mark>搭配任何衣服都很好看</mark>。

如果我没记错的话,我是几年前买的这件夹克。起初我担心它会磨损,但多年过来了,这件衣服的状态一直很好。我可能每周都会穿几次,尤其是在春季和秋季。一旦我选择了这件牛仔外套,我就不需 要再费心思去想要怎么搭配服装了。它可以和任何颜色的T恤或毛衣搭配。这件衣服是一种很漂亮的 蓝色,和我衣柜里的所有T恤都很搭配。

这件外套有一点特别好,就是</mark>它有很深的口袋。我通常不会随身携带包,我就只需要把手机、钱包和 钥匙放进口袋就可以出门了。如果衣服口袋不够大,就无法放下这些必需品,<mark>那会让我觉得很麻烦</mark>。 所以我很高兴这件衣服有我需要的一切。

总的来说,我非常喜欢穿这件李维斯的外套,因为它很合身,而且适合休闲时穿。我一定会把它一直 留在我的衣柜里(不会扔掉)。

#### 雅思 id id id

# Describe a water sport you would like to try in the future

You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) What it is Where you will do it Whether it is easy or difficult Why you would like to try it



# 28. 水上运动

Well, to be honest, besides swimming, I haven't really dabbled in any other water sports. But if I had to pick one to try out on the water, I guess I'd have to say diving.

I first saw it when I was watching the 2008 Summer Olympics in Beijing. I wasn't that interested in the games before, but when I saw the divers, I was blown away by how impressive they were. I could hardly believe my eyes when I saw the divers doing complicated flips before they hit the water. And the way they entered the water so smoothly, hardly making a splash, that really blew my mind!

So yes, it's definitely a difficult sport. It might sound weird at first, but divers actually have to train the same way that dancers and gymnasts do. Not only do they have to be strong and flexible, but they also have to know how to move their body properly in order to avoid getting hurt. Actually, I watched a reality show later that had lots of celebrities competing in diving. It's really not a piece of cake for amateurs.

Anyway, as for why I'd like to try diving... It's mainly because it's something that's way outside of my comfort zone. I think it'd be good to push myself to try something new. Plus, I'm dying to experience that feeling of freefalling from a great height and making a big splash. It's all about pushing boundaries and having a blast!

### 译文:

雅思

说实话,除了游泳,我实际上<mark>没有做过其他的水上运动</mark>。但如果我必须选择一个在水上尝试的运动,我想我会选择<mark>跳水</mark>。

我第一次看跳水是在观看 2008 年北京奥运会的时候。在那之前,我对奥运会并不那么感兴趣, 但当我看到跳水运动员时,我被他们的精彩表演<mark>震撼到了</mark>。当我看到运动员在落水前完成的<mark>复杂的翻</mark> 转动作时,我简直不敢相信自己的眼睛。而且他们能那么平稳地入水,几乎没有溅起一滴水花,这真 是<mark>让我惊叹不已</mark>!

所以,真的,这绝对是一项很困难的运动。一开始你可能听起来会觉得奇怪,但跳水运动员实际 上需要像舞者和<mark>体操运动员</mark>一样去训练。他们不仅需要身体强壮和灵活,还需要知道如何正确的做动 作以避免受伤。实际上,我后来看过一个真人秀节目,许多名人参加了跳水比赛,对于业余选手来说, 这<mark>绝非易事</mark>。

我想尝试跳水的原因主要是因为这是远离我的舒适区的一项运动。我觉得挑战自己尝试新事物很好。而且我渴望去体验一下从高处自由下落并溅起巨大水花的感觉。这一切都是为了突破界限,享受 乐趣!

# 雅思过过过淘宝店铺原创----版权所有 盗版必究 针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答 Describe a game that you played in your childhood You should say: (注:四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) What the game was When you played it Who you played it with And explain how you felt about the game

# 29. 童年游戏

Off the top of my head, the first one I can think of is definitely "The eagle and the chicks". It's a playground game that a lot of young kids enjoy. The rule of the game is that one kid plays the eagle, another kid plays the mother hen, and the rest of the kids will be the chicks. In the game, the eagle tries to catch one of the chicks, and the mother hen tries to protect the chicks from the eagle. It's quite simple and easy to play. And it's a pretty common game among children, at least for my generation.

Back then, I often played with friends living nearby. The place we played at the most often was a park located a stone's throw away from our home. The park was pretty much the heart of the community because basically it had tons of entertainment facilities for kids. Anyway, the lawn in the park was quite spacious, so it was perfect for us to play the eagle and the chicks.

If memory serves correctly, we often played there when we were off from school. We actually often played tirelessly until sunset. One thing I will never forget is that I played the eagle the most, and catching the chicks was a piece of cake for me. I think it's because I was thin and ran really fast when I was a kid. Anyway, it was definitely a lot of fun, and we always had a blast.

# 译文:

我首先想到的是"老鹰抓小鸡"这个游戏。这是一个很多小孩都特别喜欢玩的户外游戏。游戏的 规则是一个孩子要扮演老鹰,另一个孩子扮演母鸡,其他孩子则扮演小鸡们。游戏中老鹰会尝试尽力 抓住其中一只小鸡,而母鸡则需要努力保护小鸡们不被老鹰抓到。这个游戏非常简单,起码<mark>对我那个</mark> 年代来说,孩子们经常玩。

那时候,我经常和家附近的朋友们一起玩。我们<mark>最常去玩的</mark>一个地方是<mark>离我们家很近的</mark>一个公园。这个公园实际上是<mark>社区的中心</mark>,那里有很多供孩子们玩耍的设施。公园里的草坪很大,非常适合我们玩老鹰抓小鸡的游戏。

如果我没记错的话,我们经常在放学后去那里玩。常常会不知疲倦地玩到太阳下山才回家。有 一件事我永远不会忘记,那就是我扮演老鹰的次数总是最多的,抓小鸡对我来说<mark>非常容易</mark>。我想这可 能是因为我小时候比较瘦,跑得很快。总之呢,这个游戏绝对非常有意思,我们总是<mark>玩得很开心</mark>。

# 雅思

# 雅思过过过淘宝店铺原创----版权所有 盗版必究 针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答 Describe a sports program you like to watch You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) What it is; When you first watch it; Who you like to watch this program with; And explain why you like to watch this program.



# 30. 运动节目

I love watching figure skating during the winter Olympics. It's a beautiful sport that combines creativity, art, and athletics.

My mom has always been a huge fan of skating, so I've been watching this sport with her and with my older sister for as long as I can remember. My mom's all-time favorite figure skater was Michelle Kwan. She's a Chinese-American figure skater who is considered one of the greatest female figure skaters in history. I remember when I was about 6-years-old, I saw her at my first live skating event and she really dazzled me.

Even from such a young age. I remember being completely mesmerized by the beauty, strength and precision of all the figure skaters. I especially loved the sparkly costumes the athletes wore. So, after seeing the sport live, it gave me even more appreciation for watching it on TV. Actually, watching it on TV kind of became a ritual in my house after that. My sister and I would always pretend to be judges and write down our own scores for the performers. We liked seeing if the judges on TV agreed with our scores. Besides, the move we looked forward to seeing the most was always the triple-axel. The triple axel is so tough that most professionals still have trouble getting it right and often fall or trip when performing it in competitions. So, stunts like the tripleaxel are one element that makes figure skating so exciting to watch.

# 译文:

我喜欢在冬季奥运会上观看<mark>花样滑冰</mark>。这是一项<mark>将创造力、艺术和运动结合在一起</mark>的很美的运动。

我妈妈一直是花样滑冰的超级粉丝,所以我从很小的时候,就开始和我妈还有我姐一起观看这项运动。 我妈妈<mark>一直以来最喜欢的花样滑冰运动员</mark>是米歇尔·关(Michelle Kwan)。她是一位华裔美国花样滑 冰运动员,被认为是历史上最伟大的女子花样滑冰运动员之一。我记得我大概 6 岁的时候,在第一次 看这个比赛时就看到了她,<mark>她的动作真的让我看的眼花缭乱</mark>。

即使在那么小的年纪,我仍然<mark>完全被那些花样滑冰运动员的美丽、力量和精确度所吸引</mark>。我尤其喜欢 运动员穿的闪闪发光的服装。所以,在看过现场直播后,我就非常喜欢在电视上看这种运动。事实上, 观看花样滑冰表演在我家成为了一种<mark>传统仪式</mark>。我和我姐姐总是会假装自己是评委,为表演者给出我 们自己的分数。我俩特别喜欢看电视上的评委是否和我们的评分一致。而且我们最期待看到的动作是 <mark>三周跳</mark>。这个动作对于大多数专业运动员来说**要做到位都是很困难的事**,他们在比赛中做这个动作经 常会摔倒或绊倒。所以像三周跳这样的高难度动作也是花样滑冰特别好看的一个原因。

# 雅思

下划线表示与其他题目内容有重叠: 黄色高亮是高分地道表达, 在译文中也已相应高亮出来。 如有任何语法词汇方面的问题,请在雅思过过过淘宝店铺售后微信中联系 Penny 老师解答。

33

# 雅思过过过淘宝店铺原创----版权所有 盗版必究 针对资料中存在的任何语法、词汇疑问,请在售后微信联系 Penny 老师解答 Describe an invention which is very useful in your daily life. You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) What it is What you use it for Is it easy to use And explain why it is very useful in your daily life.



I would consider my air conditioning unit as one of my most useful possessions. In the summer, it gets so hot and humid in my city, and my apartment doesn't have a central air conditioning system. When I first moved into my current apartment, I thought I could survive with just an electronic fan, but boy was I wrong!

My unit is on the eighth floor and has a lot of windows, so it gets really hot whenever it's sunny outside. During the last heat wave, it literally felt like a sauna in my apartment. It was too hot to work, and way too hot to sleep. I wasn't getting anything done, so I knew I needed to find a solution. Luckily, I found someone online selling second-hand window air conditioning units for a cheap price. I had to call a cab and make the trek to a faraway warehouse to pick it up, but it was totally worth it.

Getting that AC unit was literally a breath of fresh air for me. Actually, I'm surprised how many accommodations in my city don't come with air conditioning already installed, especially considering the stifling levels of heat and humidity we experience in the summer.

Anyways, after installing the AC unit, my productivity went through the roof. I guess I didn't realize how lazy the heat had been making me feel. That's why I consider my AC unit one of the most useful things I own. It's really been a life saver for me!

# 译文:

我认为空调是我用过的最有用的物品之一。夏天我们这里总是会变得非常炎热和潮湿,而我的公寓楼 里<mark>没有中央空调系统</mark>。在我搬进现在的公寓时,我以为只要有个电风扇就能生存下去,但事实证明<mark>我</mark> 错了!

我家在 8 楼,有很多窗户,所以只要外面阳光明媚,室内就会变得特别热。上一次热浪袭来的时候, 我家里简直<mark>像蒸汽浴室一样</mark>。天气太热,我无法工作,也无法入睡,什么也做不了,所以我知道我得 找到解决的办法。还好我在网上找到一个卖<mark>二手空调</mark>的人,价格很便宜。于是我打电话叫了辆出租车, 长途跋涉去了一个很远的仓库去取货,虽然很远,但还是很值得的。

安装了空调后,我真的<mark>感觉太舒服了</mark>。实际上,我很惊讶我所在的城市有如此多的楼没有安装中央空调,尤其是考虑到我们在夏季要经历这么<mark>令人窒息的</mark>闷热和潮湿的天气。

总之,自从安装了空调后,<mark>我的工作效率飙升</mark>。我想我此前完全没有意识到是炎热的天气导致我变得 懒散。所以这就是为什么我认为空调是我拥有的最有用的东西之一。它真的是<mark>我的救命稻草</mark>!

# 雅思

Describe your ideal perfect home or dream house You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) Where this place would be What it would look like When you would like to live there And explain why it is/would be ideal to you

# 32. 理想的房子

Well, I've always dreamed of having a movable house. It all started when I watched "Howl's Moving Castle," a fantastic Japanese anime. Actually, some people have already made it happen! I saw a celebrity who transformed a car into a small 5-square-meter house, and I couldn't help but feel a tinge of jealousy.

To make my dream come true, I'd probably modify a vehicle. With some clever design work, I could fit in a cozy double bed, a bathroom with a shower, a kitchen, and even a space where I can chill, watch TV, and entertain guests. That'd be more than enough for me! Then, I could go wherever I want with my house, just like a snail! By the way, I've heard that scientists are actually working on foldable building materials for making movable houses. I'm seriously itching to get my hands on one of those!

I love this kind of house because I'm a travel junkie! But you know, finding accommodation in a new city is such a hassle, not to mention the crazy prices. Even renting an RV can be a big expense. So, if I could bring my cozy home along when I travel, it would be the best of both worlds. Plus, I'm pretty sure these movable houses would be affordable. Most young people nowadays feel a lot of pressure because they can't afford a house. If we embrace the idea of a movable house, I bet it would bring a whole lot more happiness and freedom into our lives.

# 译文:

我一直都梦想拥有一所可以移动的房子。我曾经看过一个日本的动画片叫哈尔的移动城堡,从那时候 起我就有了这个想法。事实上已经有人实现了这个梦想。最近我看到一个明星用一个汽车改造成了 5 平米的房子,<mark>真的让我忍不住非常羡慕</mark>。

目前这个梦想想要实现的话,大概率需要一台车进行改造。只要设计足够精巧,就可以在其中容纳下 一个双人床、可以洗澡的卫生间、厨房,甚至还有可以看电视和娱乐会客的空间。这对我来说就足够 了。这样我就可以随时随地,带着房子想去哪就去哪,就像蜗牛一样哈哈哈。另外,我听说已经有科 学家在研究可折叠的建筑材料,用于建造可以移动的别墅,我真的迫不及待的想要拥有了。

我之所以非常喜欢这样的房子,是因为<mark>我特别喜欢旅游</mark>。可是现在每到一座城市,找住宿的地方都<mark>很</mark> 麻烦,而且很贵。既便开房车,也是不小的花销。所以如果能带着自己的温暖的家去旅游,那真的<mark>是</mark> 两全其美的事情。另外,这样的房子造价一定不会很贵。现在大部分年轻人都因为买不起房而感到压 力很大。如果我们<mark>接受可移动房子的想法</mark>,我猜幸福感应该会更强。

#### 雅思 过过过

Describe a book you have read more than once. You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) Why you read this book What this book was about Whether you learnt anything from it And explain why you have read this book more than once.



### 33. 多次阅读的书

One of my favorite books is "The Miracles of the Namiya General Store." It's an incredibly popular novel by a Japanese author. I discovered it during my second year of high school.

From the moment I opened that book, I was hooked. I couldn't put it down and ended up staying up all night, devouring every page. Within a week, I had finished it. The story revolves around a remarkable general store where you can write down your problems on paper and leave them in their mailbox. And the next day, you receive an answer in the milk box behind the store. The concept itself is mind-blowing, and the compelling tales of each character truly tug at your heartstrings.

I'm quite into this book because each character's life story really captivates me. When I'm reading it, I totally connect with them and can't wait to find out what answer they'll get in the milk box the next day. This curiosity keeps me engaged and wanting to delve deeper.

I've actually read this book numerous times already. Especially in college, whenever I hit a rough patch, I love grabbing this book and diving in. Just like the title suggests, it really works wonders; whenever I read it, it helps me chill out and forget about my worries. Besides, the stories in the book always give me the guts and strength to face life's challenges and tough situations. So I think this book is seriously valuable and I'd totally recommend it to everyone.

#### 译文:

我最喜欢的一本书是《解忧杂货铺》。这是日本的一个著名作家写的一本<mark>非常受欢迎的小说</mark>。我是在 高二时候了解到的这本书。

从我打开那本书的那一刻起,我就完全被这本书吸引住了。我完全无法放下它,熬夜去津津有味地翻 看每一页。不到一个星期,我就读完了。这个故事围绕着一家神奇的杂货店展开,如果你有什么烦恼 或者疑问,可以写在纸上,放在杂货店门口的信箱里。第二天,你就会在杂货店后面的牛奶箱里得到 答案。这个情节设定本身就<mark>非常吸引人</mark>,而且里面每个人的故事,都非常的<mark>扣人心弦</mark>。

我非常喜欢这本书,因为每个角色的人生故事都让我深深着迷。读这些故事的时候,我会完全与他们 产生共鸣,迫不及待地想知道他们明天会在牛奶箱里得到什么答案。这种好奇心会促使我一直看下去, 并且想要有深入的了解。

实际上,这本书我已经读了很多次了。特别是在上大学时候,每当我遇到困难,我喜欢拿起这本书并 沉浸其中。正如书名所示,它确实有奇妙的效果;读这本书总能帮我放松心情,忘却烦恼。而且,书 中的故事总是会<mark>给我勇气和力量</mark>去面对生活中的挑战和困境。所以我认为这本书非常有价值,值得推 荐给所有人。

# 雅思
# Describe a movie you watched recently that you felt disappointed about You should say: (注:四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答)

When it was What it was about Why you decided to watch it And explain why you felt disappointed about it.



## 34. 让你失望的电影

I'm going to talk about a movie called Last Christmas that I watched a few weeks ago. It's a super cheesy holiday film featuring two actors I really admire. I'm a big fan of those actors, so when I stumbled upon this movie, I was pleasantly surprised. I thought I was in for a great treat; I was definitely expecting a masterpiece.

But you know what, I was pretty disappointed. The plot of the movie just didn't grab me at all. The movie is about a woman who's down on her luck. She wants to be a singer, but she hasn't had her big break yet. Later, she meets a nice guy and they become friends. The woman starts to turn things around and improves her life. She falls in love with the man, but it doesn't work out because of a very stupid plot twist. It turns out that the woman had a heart transplant a year earlier, and the man is the person who donated the heart. So he's actually been a ghost the whole time...

Honestly, I was so done with this movie once that detail was revealed. It felt incredibly silly to me, and I can't grasp why so many films lack imagination and logic these days. I'm not even sure what viewers are supposed to get from movies like this. Honestly, it was a total waste of my time. I gave it a 1-star rating on social media and wouldn't recommend it to anyone.

## 译文:

我要谈一谈几周前我看的一部电影《去年圣诞》。这是一部非常俗套的假日电影,由两位我非常敬佩 的演员主演。我是这两位演员的<mark>超级粉丝</mark>,所以当我无意中看到这部电影时,感到非常惊喜。我本以 为看这部电影会是一件很享受的事;我当然是期待这是一部杰作。

但你知道吗,我感到非常非常失望。这部电影的情节根本没有吸引住我。电影讲述的是一个<mark>倒霉的</mark>女人,她想成为一名歌手,但还没有找到机会。后来,她遇到了一个好人,他们成为了朋友。这个女人 开始扭转自己的生活,变得更好。她爱上了那个男人,但由于一个非常愚蠢的剧情转折,他们的感情 并没有结果。原来这个女人一年前做了心脏移植手术,而那个男人就是捐赠心脏的人。所以他一直就 是个鬼魂...

说实话,这个情节一出来,我就对这部电影完全失去了兴趣。对我来说,它真的是非常荒谬,我无法 理解为什么现在这么多电影缺乏想象力和逻辑。我甚至不确定观众能从这样的电影中获得什么。说实 话,我觉得这完全浪费了我的时间。我在社交媒体上<mark>给它评了1颗星</mark>,我不会向任何人推荐这部电影。

# 雅思过过过



Describe a place in your country that you think is interesting You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) Where it is How you knew it What special features it has And explain why you think it is interesting

35. 有趣/吸引你的地方(9-12 月新题)

One place that I found very appealing is a national park in our country that I visited about a year ago. I went there with my best friend Adam, who's really into nature. He actually recommended this park for us to check out. And I'm so glad he did.

At the time, we had a short break from school, so we decided that it would be nice to take a trip somewhere. Since we wanted to get away from the hustle and bustle of the city, Adam chose this park because it's surrounded by nature.

It was mid-October, so the leaves were changing colours. I didn't know what to expect going in, but it definitely blew my expectations out of the water. The landscape was so gorgeous. It looked like we had just stepped into a painting. There was a beautiful lake surrounded by trees that reflected all the colours of the leaves. There were such beautiful shades of red, orange, and yellow. Some of the leaves actually looked gold. I could hardly believe my eyes.

Adam and I had a blast there. We enjoyed a picnic by the lake and chatted. It was a lovely way to spend the day. I took lots of pictures so that I'd remember everything. It was amazing to see such a colourful place. The cool thing about nature is that it doesn't need human interference to look so beautiful. I mean, things just looked that colourful on their own. It's so amazing that they do that naturally.

Describe a beautiful city You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) Where the city is How you knew the city What buildings the city has And explain what it is famous for



## 36. 美丽的城市 (9-12 月新题)

When it comes to a beautiful city, the first one that comes to mind is Beijing. It's probably one of the most well-known cities in China since it's the capital. It's also the second-largest city after Shanghai. I visited Beijing for the first time a couple years ago, and it was absolutely incredible.

I decided to go on a trip with a few of my friends after we graduated university. One of my friends grew up there, so he was able to be our tour guide as we checked out the city. Even though it's super populated, it's also beautiful. There are so many historical sites, including the Great Wall, which of course is one of the wonders of the world. Beijing is definitely famous for that, as well as places like the Forbidden City, which is the largest palace in the world. There are also lots of ancient temples and other beautiful buildings, which were really impressive to look at. Beijing also has amazing food. My favorite dish was Beijing roast duck, which had a mouthwatering crispy skin. Trying out the local cuisine was definitely one of my favorite parts of the trip.

Honestly, the scenery itself was stunning. You can admire the beautiful skyline at night, but you can also go check out the more mountainous areas, which provide a spectacular view as well. Even though we only spent a few days there, it's easy to see why it's one of the most iconic cities in the world.

## Describe a park or a garden in your city You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) When you often go there Where it is Who you often go there with And explain what it is like/why you like it



## 37. 公园/花园 (9-12 月新题)

I love visiting a botanical garden in my hometown, Kunming, which is a beautiful, large city in southwest China. If my memory serves me right, they built this garden about three years ago, but my parents and I only checked it out for the first time last year.

This botanical garden is quite unique. While it boasts a diverse collection of plants from around the world, what truly sets it apart is the abundance of butterflies. It's like walking into a fairy tale; the plants and flowers are colourful and nicely placed. Butterflies are flying all over the garden and sometimes, if you are still enough, they actually land on you. That's the perfect time for pictures. My family took hundreds of pictures when we last visited. I remember that when I was at the botanical garden, a giant blue butterfly landed on the center of my head. It stood out very brightly, and it was so cool! The picture looks awesome, too.

Anyway, I really had a blast touring this unique garden. But I'll be the first to admit it, initially I was a little scared of the butterflies. I don't really like bugs in general, and when I walked into the garden, all I saw were millions of bugs flying around. However, I would still recommend this place to everyone. After a few minutes, you get used to the butterflies and insects. Then, the walk through the garden becomes that much more fun.

## Describe a new shop that recently opened in your city / town

You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) Where the shop is What it sells What kinds of people usually go to this shop And explain how successful you think it will be in the future



## 38. 新开的店

I'm going to talk about a plant shop that opened up downtown. If memory serves correctly, it opened a few months ago. It sells all kinds of plants, from succulents to little fruit trees. There are also tons of cute plant accessories, such as planters, plant stands, and more. On the shop's opening day, they gave away a free succulent with every purchase. Those tiny plants are so cute; it definitely helped stir up interest in the shop.

When I went there for the first time, I bought two plants, some nice planters, and a glass butterfly to put in the dirt for each one. They look so cute on my kitchen counter. There were lots of customers when I went there. It's nice to see that the plant shop is doing so well.

All kinds of people like going to this shop, both young and old. Whenever I go, I typically see more young people since plants are super trendy at the moment. But people of all backgrounds love plants because they brighten up a space. It's also really satisfying to watch them grow. Anyway, since the plant shop has such a beautiful layout and a welcoming atmosphere, it's become the premier place to get plants from.

I believe this plant shop will continue to be super successful in the future. Not only is it a great place to shop at, but the staff are super knowledgeable and can answer any question you might have about plant care. I think that people really appreciate having such a good experience shopping there.

## 译文:

我要谈一谈在市中心开的一家绿植店。如果我没记错的话,它是几个月前开的。这里卖各种绿植,从 多肉植物到小型果树应有尽有。还有很多可爱的种植物会用到的配件,比如花盆、植物架等等。开业 那天,每个购物者都会得到一盆免费的多肉植物。这些小植物非常可爱,肯定<mark>吸引了很多人对这家店</mark> 的关注。

我第一次去那里的时候,买了两盆植物,一些漂亮的花盆,还买了一只可以放在土壤中的玻璃蝴蝶。 我把它们摆放在了我<mark>厨房的台面</mark>上,看起来非常可爱。当时我去的时候人很多。看到店里生意很好, 我感到非常开心。

很多人都喜欢光顾这家店,不论年轻还是年长。每次我去的时候,总会看到年轻人更多一些,因为现 在正<mark>特别流行</mark>种植一些小植物。不过,不管什么人都喜欢植物,主要是因为它们<mark>能够给我们的生活空</mark>间带来活力。看着植物成长也会带来一种令人满足的感觉。事实上,由于这家店的<mark>布置非常漂亮</mark>,氛 围非常好,所以它已经成为人们<mark>购买植物的首选之地</mark>。

我认为这家绿植店未来一定会做的非常成功。不仅是因为它是一个很好的购物场所,还有一个原因是, 店里的员工懂得的东西很多,可以回答你对种植植物方面的任何疑问。我认为人们非常喜欢在那里购 物时获得的良好体验。

#### 和思 러 너 너 너 너

## **Describe a place away from your home and you want to visit in the future** You should say: (注:四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答)

Where you would like to go When you would like to go Who you want to go with And explain why you want to visit the place



## 39. 想去的遥远的地方

I'm going to visit Vietnam for the first time this upcoming January. I'm planning a trip for three weeks with my boyfriend. It's a great place to take a holiday because it's inexpensive, but still very beautiful.

While in Vietnam, I'd like to visit Phu Quoc Island. This island has a long cable car route where you can enjoy a 360-degree sea view. I bet it will be amazing to see all the colorful fishing boats from a bird's eye view. I'd also like to spend a day at Sao beach because it's famous for its clear, blue water and white, powder sand. The water there is calm and shallow, so it's ideal for relaxing. It will be perfect for a beach bum like me. At night I'm planning to visit the Yangdong Town Night Market. It's supposed to be the perfect place to try some local dishes like barbecued seafood.

Besides Phu Quoc, Ly Son beach town is also on my list. It's a little off the beaten path, which means there will likely be less tourists. It has a lot of volcanoes which makes the soil very fertile for farming. Ly Son is known for growing garlic. It's actually known as the garlic kingdom!

Overall, Vietnam sounds like a tropical traveler's paradise. Coming from a colder climate which is also landlocked, I spend all winter dreaming of amazing getaways to places like this.

## 译文:

我准备<mark>明年一月</mark>去越南玩。我计划和我男朋友一起去那里旅游三个礼拜。这里是一个非常好的度假胜地,因为去这里玩不用花很多钱,但风景还很美。

在越南我最想去的是富国岛。这个岛<mark>有一条长长的缆车线路</mark>,你可以欣赏到 360 度的海景。我相信<mark>鸟</mark> 戰到五颜六色的渔船感觉一定很棒。我还想在沙滩上度过一天,因为富国岛以清澈湛蓝的海水和白色 细沙而闻名。那里的水很平静,很浅,非常适合放松。对于像我这样喜欢沙滩的人来说,去那里玩一 定会非常完美。晚上的话,我打算去阳东镇夜市。那里据说是品尝当地的烧烤海鲜等美食的最理想的 场所。

除了富国岛,里森海滩小镇也<mark>在我的计划之中</mark>。<mark>这个地方有些偏僻</mark>,所以可能游客不多。那里有很多 火山,所以土壤非常肥沃,适合种植。里森是以种植大蒜而闻名。实际上,它被称为是大蒜王国!

总体来说,越南听起来像是<mark>一个热带旅行者的天堂</mark>。作为来自一个气候较冷的<mark>内陆地区</mark>的人,整个冬 天我都很想要在这种地方度过<mark>美好的(短期)假期</mark>。

# 雅思

Describe a crowded place you have visited You should say (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) Where it is Who you were with When you wert there And explain how you felt about being there.



## 40. 人很多的地方

When it comes to a crowded place that I've visited, the first one that comes to mind is a sports stadium in my city. It's a really popular place, especially in the summer because people like to watch a game there. I went a few weeks ago and I was shocked at how many people were there.

If memory serves correctly, it was a Saturday afternoon. I decided to go see a football game with a couple of my good friends. When we got to the stadium, we had to wait twenty minutes just to park. There weren't any open spaces, so we had to wait for someone to leave their spot. Once we parked, we decided to grab food at a concession stand. The line was super long. I think it took us half an hour just to place our order.

After we got our food, we made our way to our seats. Usually there are lots of empty seats so it's not too crowded. But that afternoon, every seat was taken. It was jam-packed. I was glad it wasn't indoors; otherwise, I probably would've felt claustrophobic. But it's an open-air stadium so you can enjoy the nice weather.

Anyways, there must've been thousands of people in the stadium. They all cheered so loudly whenever the home team scored. The energy level was through the roof. In one way, it was really nice being there with so many football fans. But it was also a little overwhelming because of how noisy and crowded it was.

## 译文:

说到我去过的拥挤的地方,我首先想到的是我所在城市的一个体育场。这是一个非常受欢迎的地方, 尤其在夏天,人们喜欢去那里观看各种比赛。几周前,我去那里时,对人数之多感到相当震惊。

如果我没记错的话,那是一个星期六的下午。我和几个好朋友决定去看一场足球比赛。当我们到达体 育场时,花了二十分钟才找到停车位。因为<mark>没有空位</mark>,所以我们只能<mark>等着有人离开</mark>。好不容易停好车 后,我们决定<mark>去一个小吃摊买些吃的</mark>。排队的人非常多。我想我们大概花了半小时点到餐。

拿到食物后,我们去找到了自己的座位。通常情况下会有很多空座位,所以不会太拥挤。但那天下午, 每个座位都坐了人,<mark>真正的人山人海</mark>。我庆幸这是露天体育场,否则我可能会感到有<mark>幽闭恐惧症</mark>。还 好是<mark>露天的体育场</mark>,我们能享受到美好的天气。

总之,体育场里肯定有成千上万的人。<mark>每当主队得分时</mark>,观众们都会欢呼雀跃</mark>。现场的气氛非常热烈。 从某种程度上说,和这么多的球迷在一起感觉非常好。但同时,嘈杂和拥挤的感觉也着实让人有些受 不了。

雅思



Describe a foreigner who speaks Chinese well You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) Who this person is Where he / she is from How he / she learns Chinese And explain why he can speak Chinese well

41. 汉语很好的外国人 (9-12 月新题)

I'm going to talk about my friend Aaron. He's from the United States, specifically Texas. It might sound funny that a Texan could speak Chinese well, but he honestly impressed me so much with how fluent he is. If memory serves correctly, I met Aaron a few years ago. He happened to work at the same café that my friend did. So when I was visiting my friend at the café, he was also working a shift.

My friend was excited to introduce me to Aaron. The two of them get along really well, and my friend thought Aaron and I would hit it off. My first impression of Aaron was that he was really nice, and that he had an interesting accent that I couldn't quite place. I asked where he was from, and I was shocked to find out that he was from Texas. That explained the accent, but not why he spoke Chinese so well. He explained that he came to China as an international student for his undergraduate studies. He's always had an aptitude for learning languages, so he managed to learn Chinese pretty quickly. It helped him feel more comfortable in China as a foreigner.

Even though he has a unique accent, his Chinese is still really good. He actually speaks a few other languages, like Korean and Spanish. It blows my mind how some people can pick up language so easily. Chinese can be hard to learn, but Aaron has done a pretty good job of mastering it.

## Describe a person who enjoys cooking for others You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) Who this person is What he / she likes to cook Who he/she cooks for And explain why this person enjoys cooking



42. 喜欢烹饪的人 (9-12 月新题)

Someone who really enjoys cooking for others is my friend Luke. For as long as I've known him, he's been a super kind and generous person. He has his own place now. It's pretty big, so he likes to have people over for dinner parties and barbecues. Honestly, every meal he's ever made for me has been delicious. He knocks my socks off whenever he cooks.

Luke isn't a professional cook or anything, but he's picked up lots of tricks over the years. He can make food that tastes just as good as what they serve you in restaurants. His specialty is probably roast duck. He makes the skin so crispy and seasons everything so nicely. My mouth is watering just thinking about it. It's funny because Luke works as an accountant during the day. It's a pretty boring job by most people's standards. But then he comes home and makes these amazing meals. I bet nobody at work would expect him to have this kind of skill.

I think Luke enjoys cooking because food is a great way to bond with other people. Whether you're chatting as you make the meal together or getting to know someone over dinner, food can bring people together. Plus, it's an act of love to make food for someone. So it's a good way for Luke to show people that he cares about them. I think it's really nice of him to serve people in this way.

**Describe an interesting person that you have not met in person and would like to know more about** You should say: (注:四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答)

Who this person is How you knew him / her What interesting things he / she has done And explain what you would like to know more about him / her



## 43. 想见的有趣的人(9-12 月新题)

When it comes to someone interesting that I'd love to meet one day, my friend's mentor is the first one who comes to mind. My friend works as a photographer. He just got started about a year ago. He's loved photography his whole life. I remember he was obsessed with taking pictures when we were in high school. Actually, some of the best photos I have of myself are ones that he's taken.

Now that he's a professional photographer, he's gotten to know other people working in that field. One of them is a photographer who's been in the game for twenty years. His name is Adam. He's worked in all kinds of areas, including sports and wildlife photography. He became a mentor to my friend and showed him the ropes. According to my friend, this guy has tons of interesting stories about his experiences. I've seen some of the photos that Adam has taken, and they're all breathtaking. He's been to almost every country in the world and he has the pictures to prove it.

I'm really interested in travel, so I'd love to pick his brain about some of the best places to visit. We haven't met in person yet, but I think my friend could arrange it if I asked. I'm not an avid photographer by any means. But I'd still love to hear about some of the experiences Adam has had. I bet he has a lot of cool insights.

## **Describe a successful businessperson you know (e. g. running a family business)** You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答)

Who this person is How you knew him / her What business he / she does And explain why he / she is successful



## 44. 成功的商人 (9-12 月新题)

I'm going to talk about my uncle. He's been running a camera shop for the last ten years. It wasn't his first job, but I think it's the best one he's ever had. To my knowledge, he used to work as an accountant before. But he was always really interested in photography. He went on trips across the world whenever he had the chance. He wanted to document his adventures, so he learned how to use film cameras to get that classic look.

Ten years ago, he retired from his job as an accountant. But he still wanted to be active. So he decided to turn his passion into a job. He opened up a small camera shop. Not only does he sell film cameras and film supplies, but he also shares some great tips and techniques with his customers. It took a while for his shop to get off the ground, but his welcoming attitude and knowledge about cameras really helped him stand out. His business became successful through word of mouth alone, which is honestly pretty successful.

I think my uncle's success comes down to his love for this profession. Undoubtedly, photography has always been his true passion, and that's why he can put so much time and effort into it. Plus, in a world where everyone's snapping pics with their phones, he's managed to make people yearn for the good old days of using real cameras. It's a pretty cool business move if you ask me.

#### Describe a person who always has interesting ideas or opinions

You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答)

Who this person is What this person does How you knew him / her And explain why you think his / her ideas or opinions are interesting



45. 想法有趣的人 (9-12 月新题)

My brother is someone who I think has really amazing ideas and opinions. He's pretty young in age, but I think that he's really smart. He reads a lot so he has a lot of knowledge on many subjects. My brother has a passion for learning, which is why his mind is so interesting.

In his free time, he just sits inside and reads something new. It can be a newspaper, novel or even a textbook. He's just constantly learning. Then, when he learns about something new, he makes sure to teach it to me as well. So, whenever we talk, he always brings up an interesting topic to debate about. Last week, for example, he brought up the philosophy of fate versus destiny. His argument was that fate doesn't exist, and that all humans have free will.

That conversation was mind-blowing. I loved how controversial it was. I mean, his arguments were so out of the box that I could barely keep up with him. He had so many logical arguments and facts that he could use to back himself up that I ended up just listening and learning from him. That's what I really like about my brother, the fact that he doesn't care who knows what. He just teaches casually and lets people learn on their own. And, whenever I talk to him, I do actually learn a whole new perspective on a new topic. It gives me a lot of things to talk about as well.

## Describe someone you studied with is successful in his/her life

You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) Who this person is Where and when you studied together In what area this person has been very successful And explain why you think this person is successful in his/her life



## 46. 成功的同学(9-12月新题)

One successful person that comes to mind is my friend John. I met him in our first year of university. He was doing a totally different major than me, but we had the same introductory psychology course. On the very first day of class, I happened to choose a seat next to him, and John, who is quite sociable, struck up a conversation. We hit it off pretty quickly, and we've been friends ever since. Even though we were studying different things, we often studied together because it helped keep us focused. I've never met someone as dedicated and driven as John. I was prone to procrastinating, but John was always on task. He actually helped me redirect my attention whenever I got distracted.

After we graduated, John got a job at one of the top-ranked research facilities in our country. His focus was on virology, which is a really important subject. Ever since Covid, scientists have been even more focused on studying viruses and how they spread. He worked his way up to a senior position pretty quickly. So I'd say he's really successful in his field. He's published lots of research papers and I think he even won an award for his work a few months ago.

I think John is successful not only because he's a science whiz, but also because he's incredibly hardworking. He has a great work ethic and he's passionate about what he does. I think that combination will help him go really far in life.

49

Describe a sportsperson you admire You should say: (注:四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) Who he / she is What you know about him / her What he / she is like in real life What achievement he / she has made And explain why you admire him / her



## 47. 敬佩的运动员 (9-12 月新题)

Well, I know tons of athletes since I'm a fan of many sports. But the one who really left a mark on me is a sprinter who just attended the Tokyo Olympics. His name is Su Bingtian, and he's the first ever Asian sprinter to break the 10-second barrier of the 100-meter event in track, which is amazing. He's definitely a household name in China.

Actually he rose to fame years ago when he won the 100-meter race in the Asian Games and broke the Asian record. He still holds the record, which means he's literally the fastest Asian in the world.

Anyway, before the Tokyo Olympics, just like lots of other Chinese people, I was really looking forward to seeing his performance on the track. His first race was the men's 100 meter semi-finals; he was so incredibly fast and finished in first place, which blew my mind. Honestly, before he ran in the final, I had faith in him that he could probably win a medal, or even gold. But in the end, he came in sixth place in the final. I was a little disappointed at the beginning but on second thought, he still made history by being the first Asian man in the Olympics' 100 meter final and I witnessed it!

So even though he came back without an Olympic medal, he's my and many Chinese people's hero because he's proved Asians can also fly on the track! He definitely deserves his fame and sets an example for Asian kids.

## Describe someone who has recently moved into his/her new home/accommodation.

You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答)

Who this person is

Why this person moved into his/her new home

What kind of home/accommodation this person moved to

And explain whether you think this move was a positive change for this person.



## 48. 新搬家的人

My brother and his wife recently moved into a new home. His wife gave birth to their first child in the spring, and they got a dog around the same time, so they decided to upgrade from a 1-bedroom apartment to a 2-bedroom house. Luckily, my brother is a real-estate agent, so he was able to snag a great place for a good price.

Their new house has a private, gated backyard, which is perfect for the whole family to enjoy. At the moment, it's the dog who is especially enjoying the backyard in the new place. Actually, my brother's wife has a doggy daycare business, so lots of dogs will be enjoying the yard. My brother even installed a special door for the dogs so that they can let themselves in and out of the house.

My brother worked in home renovations for a while so he's quite handy when it comes to building. He's already installed a laundry chute in the house and he's creating the plan for a giant treehouse he's going to build in the backyard. I guess as his daughter grows up, she will enjoy having such a nice backyard to play in.

Overall, it's plain to see that the move has been a positive change for my brother's family, even if it's a bit more expensive. After all, when your family is growing, your living space needs to grow with it.

## 译文:

我哥嫂最近搬进了新家。我嫂子春天时候<mark>生了第一个孩子</mark>,他们还在同一时间养了一只狗,所以他俩 决定<mark>从之前的一居室升级到两居室</mark>。幸运的是,我哥哥是一个房地产经纪,所以他<mark>以一个很好的价格</mark> 买到了一个好地方。

他们的新房子<mark>有一个私人的、有围栏的后院</mark>,这对全家来说都很完美。他家狗狗特别喜欢新房子的后 院。事实上我嫂子还经营着<mark>一家狗狗托管中心</mark>,所以有很多狗狗会在这个院子里玩耍。我哥哥甚至为 狗狗安装了一个很特别的门,让它们可以自己进出房子。

我哥<mark>以前干过一段时间装修</mark>,所以在家装方面他非常在行。他已经在房子里安装了一个洗衣槽</mark>,现在 他正打算在后院建造一个树屋。我猜他们的女儿长大后,会很喜欢有这样一个漂亮的后院可以玩耍。 总的来说,即使这个房子稍微有点贵,但搬家对我哥哥一家来说<mark>显然</mark>是一个非常积极的变化。毕竟, 当你的家庭人口增长后,生活空间也需要随之扩大。

# 雅思

Describe a popular person You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答) Who this person is What he or she is like Why you think this person is popular How this person influences the public



### 49. 受欢迎的人

I'd like to talk about Ma Li, who is a female comedian and actress in China.

I got to know her from a comedy I watched with a bunch of friends two years ago. I remember the English name of this movie is Never Say Die. It's a body swap story about a boxer and a female journalist. Ma Li played the journalist in the movie and I remember that whenever there was a scene with her, everyone in the theatre was busting a gut.

Since then, her excellent acting has left a deep impression on me. And I began to pay attention to her. I think she's really the best woman comedian in China now. Actually comedy is still a male-dominated field in our culture. So famous female comedians can be counted on one hand. Ma Li's rise in the comedy movie really caught people's attention. She isn't a plus-size person, and she doesn't have a funny look like the stereotypes most people have for female comedians. Instead, she's a gorgeous girl with great acting skills. By now, all the movies she was cast in are box office hits, which really makes me admire her.

Now I'm a huge fan of hers, and I love watching her movies because they can help me blow off steam. I can totally lose myself in the funny plot of the movie and forget everything else. I'm really grateful for her efforts in giving people so much joy. I'll keep paying attention to her updates and hope she can star in more and better comedies.

### 译文:

我想谈谈马丽,她是中国的女喜剧演员和女演员。

我是两年前和一群朋友看的喜剧中认识的她。我记得这部电影的英文名字叫《永不言败》。这是 一个关于一个拳击手和一个女记者的身体互换的故事。马丽在电影中扮演记者,我记得每当有她出现 的场面,剧院里的每个人都在<mark>爆笑</mark>。

从那以后,她出色的表演给我留下了深刻的印象。我开始关注她。我认为她现在真的是中国最好 的女喜剧演员。实际上,喜剧在我们的文化中仍然是一个男性主导的领域。所以著名的女喜剧演员 <mark>指可数</mark>。马丽在喜剧电影中的崛起确实<mark>引起了人们的注意</mark>。她不是很胖的人,也没有大多数人对女喜 剧演员的<mark>刻板印象</mark>。相反,她是一个有着出色演技的漂亮女孩。到现在为止,她演的所有电影都<mark>有很 高的票房</mark>,这真让我佩服她。

现在我是<mark>她的超级粉丝</mark>,我喜欢看她的电影,因为它们能帮我<mark>释放压力</mark>。我<mark>完全可以沉浸在这部</mark> 电影里有趣的情节中</mark>而忘记其他一切。我真的很感激她给人们带来这么多欢乐的努力。我会继续关注 她的更新,希望她能出演更多更好的喜剧。

# 雅思

## Describe a person in your area/in your neighborhood who likes to help others

You should say: (注: 四小问是帮助扩展思路的线索,但不是必须完全按照四小问回答)

Who the person is What help did the person offer Why the person likes to help others And explain how you feel about that person



50. 居住在你区域的乐于助人的人

When it comes to a person in my area who likes to help others, the first person who comes to mind is an awesome doctor. He's in his thirties and if I remember correctly, he's got a cute little kid who's only about four or five years old. Anyways, this guy is always ready to lend a hand to anyone in need. In our neighborhood, he's like the superhero that everyone respects.

You know, we've got a WeChat group for all people in the neighborhood, and this doctor is part of it too. I always see him jumping in to answer people's questions. Being a doctor, whenever someone in the group has a health issue, he's right there with all kinds of helpful advice.

Plus, when the whole COVID-19 thing hit, this doctor was on fire. He'd regularly post in the group with accurate info on how to stay safe, such as how to wear masks correctly and how to properly disinfect items bought from the supermarket. He even offered free check-ups to a few older people in our building who have ongoing health problems.

As for why he likes to help others, I think it's because he's a genuinely kind and generous person. I've talked to him a few times, and it seems that he really values being of service whenever he can. I really admire him. It takes a big heart to help others without any incentive. I hope I can be like him when I'm that age. 译文:

谈到我家附近喜欢帮助他人的人,我首先想到的是一位很棒的医生。他三十多岁,如果我没记错的话, 他有一个可爱的四五岁的小孩。这个人总是<mark>乐于去帮助</mark>那些需要帮助的人。在我们的社区,他就像是 受到大家尊敬的超级英雄一样。

我们社区邻里都加着一个微信群,<mark>这个医生也是其中一员</mark>。我经常看到他<mark>积极参与回答群里人们的问</mark> 题。作为一名医生,每当群里有人有健康方面的问题时,他总是会尽力提供各种有用的建议。

而且,<mark>新冠疫情爆发时</mark>,这位医生表现的也<mark>非常活跃</mark>。他总是定期在群里发布关于如何保持安全和健 康的准确信息,比如如何正确佩戴口罩和如何<mark>正确给超市买回来的东西消毒</mark>。他甚至为我们楼里一些 <mark>有慢性病的</mark>老年人提供免费的健康检查。

至于他为什么喜欢帮助别人,我认为这是因为他是一个真正善良和慷慨的人。我和他聊过几次,他似 乎<mark>非常重视在能够帮助别人的时候去尽自己的一份力量</mark>。我非常钦佩他,<mark>能够无私地帮助他人需要有</mark> 一颗豁达的心,我希望我到了他这个年龄,也能和他一样。

# 雅思